### **REGIONAL DISTRICT OF NANAIMO**

# MINUTES OF THE ELECTORAL AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING OF THE REGIONAL DISTRICT OF NANAIMO HELD ON TUESDAY, JANUARY 13, 2015 AT 6:30 PM IN THE RDN BOARD CHAMBERS

#### In Attendance:

Director B. Veenhof	Chairperson
Director A. McPherson	Electoral Area A
Director M. Young	Electoral Area C
Director B. Rogers	Electoral Area E
Director J. Fell	Electoral Area F
Director J. Stanhope	Electoral Area G

#### Also in Attendance:

P. Thorkelsson	Chief Administrative Officer
J. Harrison	Director of Corporate Services
R. Alexander	Gen. Mgr. Regional & Community Utilities
G. Garbutt	Gen. Mgr. Strategic & Community Development
T. Osborne	Gen. Mgr. Recreation & Parks
D. Pearce	A/Gen. Mgr. Transportation & Solid Waste
J. Holm	Mgr. Current Planning
J. Hill	Mgr. Administrative Services
C. Golding	Recording Secretary

## CALL TO ORDER

The Chairperson called the meeting to order.

#### **ELECTORAL AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MINUTES**

#### Minutes of the Regular Electoral Area Planning Committee meeting held Tuesday, October 14, 2014.

MOVED Director McPherson, SECONDED Director Stanhope, that the minutes of the regular Electoral Area Planning Committee meeting held October 14, 2014, be adopted.

CARRIED

#### Minutes of the Special Electoral Area Planning Committee meeting held Tuesday, October 14, 2014.

MOVED Director Young, SECONDED Director McPherson, that the minutes of the Special Electoral Area Planning Committee meeting held October 14, 2014, be adopted.

CARRIED

CARRIED

# **DEVELOPMENT PERMIT APPLICATIONS**

# Development Permit Application No. PL2014-062 – Hezz Camp Co. Ltd – 924 Island Highway East, Electoral Area 'G'.

MOVED Director Stanhope, SECONDED Director Young, that Development Permit No. PL2014-062 to permit the expansion of a resort vehicle park through the addition of 67 camping spaces with accessory covered decks, a picnic shelter and new reception building on the subject property be approved subject to the conditions outlined in Attachments 2 to 10.

# Development Permit Application No. PL2014-128 – Schultz / Bollinger – 971 Maple Lane Drive, Electoral Area 'G'.

MOVED Director Stanhope, SECONDED Director Young, that Development Permit No. PL2014-128 to permit a subdivision and future residential construction on proposed Lots A and B in the Hazard Lands and Environmentally Sensitive Features (Aquifer Protection) Development Permit Areas be approved subject to the conditions outlined in Attachments 2 and 3.

# DEVELOPMENT VARIANCE PERMIT APPLICATIONS

# Development Variance Permit Application No. PL2014-132 – Lost Lake Properties Ltd. – Electoral Area 'G'.

MOVED Director Stanhope, SECONDED Director Young, that staff be directed to complete the required notification.

MOVED Director Stanhope, SECONDED Director Young, that Development Variance Permit No. PL2014-132 to reduce the minimum front lot line setback distance from 8.0 metres to 5.0 metres for proposed Lots A, G and H, and to increase the minimum interior side and rear lot line setback distance from 2.0 metres to 4.0 metres for the northern lot lines on proposed Lot H be approved subject to the conditions outlined in Attachments 2 and 3.

# CARRIED

CARRIED

# Development Variance Permit Application No. PL2014-135 – Broughton – 2458 Pylades Drive, Electoral Area 'A'.

MOVED Director McPherson, SECONDED Director Fell, that staff be directed to complete the required notification.

# CARRIED

MOVED Director McPherson, SECONDED Director Fell, that Development Variance Permit No. PL2014-135 to reduce the other lot line setback from 5.0 metres to 3.2 metres be approved subject to the conditions outlined in Attachments 2 to 4.

### CARRIED

# Development Variance Permit Application No. PL2014-122 – Vogel – 984 Ford Road, Electoral Area 'F'.

MOVED Director Fell, SECONDED Director Young, that staff be directed to complete the required notification.

MOVED Director Fell, SECONDED Director Young, that Development Variance Permit No. PL2014-122 to reduce the minimum setback requirement from the exterior lot line from 4.5 metres to 2.9 metres be approved subject to the conditions outlined in Attachments 2 and 3.

CARRIED

# Development Variance Permit Application No. PL2014-133 – 0928323 BC Ltd. & Pland Land Corp Inc. BC0928626 – Electoral Area 'G'.

MOVED Director Stanhope, SECONDED Director Fell, that staff be directed to complete the required notification.

CARRIED

MOVED Director Stanhope, SECONDED Director Fell, that Development Variance Permit No. PL2014-133 to reduce the minimum front lot line setback distance from 8.0 metres to 6.0 metres for proposed Lots 17 - 30, 33, 34, and 36 be approved subject to the conditions outlined in Attachments 2 and 3.

CARRIED

# DEVELOPMENT PERMIT WITH VARIANCE APPLICATIONS

Development Permit with Variances Application No. PL2014-130 – Lightfoot – 6203 Island Highway West, Electoral Area 'H'.

MOVED Director Stanhope, SECONDED Director Young, that staff be directed to complete the required notification.

### CARRIED

MOVED Director Stanhope, SECONDED Director Young, that Development Permit with Variances No. PL2014-130 to permit the construction of a proposed dwelling within the Coastal Protection Development Permit Area, and variances to legalize an existing building be approved subject to the conditions outlined in Attachments 2 to 4.

### CARRIED

# Development Permit with Variance Application No. PL2014-131 – DHR Enterprises Ltd. – 3850 Island Highway West, Electoral Area 'G'.

MOVED Director Stanhope, SECONDED Director Rogers, that staff be directed to complete the required notification.

CARRIED

MOVED Director Stanhope, SECONDED Director Rogers, that Development Permit with Variance No. PL2014-131 to permit changes to commercial signage on the subject property be approved subject to the conditions outlined in Attachments 2 to 5.

CARRIED

# OTHER

Official Community Plan Amendment Application No. PL2014-095 and Zoning Amendment Application No. PL2014-098 – Stauffer – 2930 Trans Canada Hwy., Electoral Area 'A'.

MOVED Director McPherson, SECONDED Director Young, that the Board approve the Proposed Public Consultation Plan as outlined in Attachment 7.

MOVED Director McPherson, SECONDED Director Young, that "Regional District of Nanaimo Electoral Area 'A' Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 1620.03, 2015" be introduced and be given first reading.

# CARRIED

MOVED Director McPherson, SECONDED Director Young, that, having considered the impact on the current Financial Plan and Solid Waste Management Plan, "Regional District of Nanaimo Electoral Area 'A' Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 1620.03, 2015" be given second reading.

## CARRIED

MOVED Director McPherson, SECONDED Director Young, that "Regional District of Nanaimo Land Use and Subdivision Amendment Bylaw No. 500.397, 2015" be introduced and read two times.

## CARRIED

MOVED Director McPherson, SECONDED Director Young, that the Public Hearing on "Regional District of Nanaimo Electoral Area 'A' Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 1620.03, 2015" be chaired by Director McPherson or his alternate.

MOVED Director McPherson, SECONDED Director Young, that the Public Hearing on "Regional District of Nanaimo Land Use and Subdivision Amendment Bylaw No. 500.397, 2015" be chaired by Director McPherson or his alternate.

## CARRIED

# Zoning Amendment Application No. PL2012-012 – Trustees of the Little Mountain Congregation of Jehovah's Witnesses, Parksville, BC – Bylaw 1285.23, 2015 – First and Second Reading.

MOVED Director Fell, SECONDED Director Stanhope, that "Electoral Area 'F' Zoning and Subdivision Amendment Bylaw No. 1285.23, 2015" be introduced and read two times.

### CARRIED

MOVED Director Fell, SECONDED Director Stanhope, that the Public Hearing on "Electoral Area 'F' Zoning and Subdivision Amendment Bylaw No. 1285.23, 2015" be chaired by Director Fell or his alternate.

### CARRIED

MOVED Director Fell, SECONDED Director Stanhope, that the conditions set out in Attachment 2 of the staff report, as amended, be completed prior to "Electoral Area 'F' Zoning and Subdivision Amendment Bylaw No. 1285.23, 2015" being considered for adoption.

### CARRIED

# Zoning Amendment Application No. PL2014-092 – Allsbrook Estates Ltd. – Electoral Area 'F'.

MOVED Director Fell, SECONDED Director Stanhope, that "Electoral Area 'F' Zoning and Subdivision Amendment Bylaw No. 1285.24, 2015" be introduced and read two times.

CARRIED

MOVED Director Fell, SECONDED Director Stanhope, that the Public Hearing on "Electoral Area 'F' Zoning and Subdivision Amendment Bylaw No. 1285.24, 2015" be chaired by Director Fell or his alternate.

### CARRIED

RDN EAPC Minutes January 13, 2015 Page 5

MOVED Director Fell, SECONDED Director Stanhope, that the conditions set out in Attachment 2 of the staff report be completed prior to Amendment Bylaw No. 1285.24 being considered for adoption.

CARRIED

# ADJOURNMENT

MOVED Director Stanhope, SECONDED Director Young, that this meeting be adjourned.

CARRIED

TIME: 6:49 PM

CHAIRPERSON

CORPORATE OFFICER